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Mar for TiQ: are increasing South &America, Eastern

Far East and China and we believe thes e significant markets
continue to develop




The following tables show our approximate sales wvolume by geographic
region and end use for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Sales Volumes Parcentages Sales Volumes Percentages
by Geographic Region by End-use
Europe 53% Coatings 53%
North America 32% Plastics 35%
Bsia Pacific 10% Other 8%
Rest of World 5% Paper 4%

Sceme of the principal applicaticons for our products include the
fellowing:

Tig, for Coarings - OQur Ti0Q, is _used to nrovide opacity, ducabildov. oo —o
tinting strength and brightness in—3industrial-——coatings, as well as coatCIngs
e oo _home dnterxions.and axbewiose ankamehilas sl verafr . machines __annliancea
traffic paint and other special purpose ceoatings. The amount of Ti0; used in
coatings wvaries widely depending on the opacity, color and guality desired.
In general, the higher the opacity requirement of the coating, the greater is
its TiQ. content.

Ti0, for Plastics - We produce TiQ, pigments that improve the optical
and physical properties in plastics, including whiteness and opacity. Ti0; is
used to provide opacity in items such as containers and packaging materials,
and wvinyl products such as windows, door preofiles and siding. Tio; also
generally provides hiding power, neutral undertone, brightness and surface
durability for housewares, appliances, toys, computer cases and food packages.
Ti0;'s high brightness along with its opacity, 1is used in some engineering
plastics to help mask their undesirable natural color. Ti0; is alsoc used in
masterbatch, which is a concentrate of Ti0; and other additives and is one of
the largest uses for TiO, in the plastics end-use market. In masterbatch, the
TiO, is dispersed at high concentrations into a plastic resin and is then used
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We produce high purity sulfate process anatase TiO; used to provide
opacity, whiteness and brightness in a variety of cosmetic and personal care

products, such as skin cream, lipstick, eye shadow and toothpaste. OQur TiO:
is alsc found in food products, such as candy and confectionaries, and in pet
foods where it is used to obtain uniformity of color and appearance. In

pharmaceuticals, our TiO, is used commonly as a colorant in pill and capsule
coatings as well as in liguid medicines to provide uniformity of color and
appearance. Kronos® purified anatase grades meet the applicable regquirements
of the CTFA (Cosmetics, Toiletries and Fragrances Association}, USP and BP
(United States Pharmacopoeia and British Pharmacopoeia) and the FDA (United
States Food and Drug Administration).

Qur Ti0, business is enhanced by the following three complementary
businesses, which comprised approximately 8% of our net sales in 2011:

¢ We own and operate two ilmenite mines in Norway pursuant to a
governmental concession with an unlimited term. We commenced
production from our second mine in 200%. Ilmenite is a raw material
used directly as a feedstock by some sulfate-process TiO; plants. We
believe that we have a significant competitive advantage because our
mines supply our feedstock reguirements for all of our Eurcpean
sulfate-process plants. We also sell ilmenite ore to third-parties,
gsome of whom are our competitors. The mines have estimated ilmenite
reserves that are expected to last at least 50 years.

¢ We manufacture and sell iron-based chemicals, which are co-products
and processed co-products of the sulfate and chloride process TiO;
pigment production. These co-product chemicals are marketed through
our Ecochem division and are primarily used as Gtreatment and
conditioning agents for industrial effluents and municipal wastewater
as well as in the manufacture of iron pigments, cement and
agricultural products.

¢ We manufacture and sell titanium oxychloride and titanyl sulfate,
which are side-stream specialty products from the production of TiO;.
Titanium oxychloride is used in specialty applications in the
formulation of pearlescent pigments, production of electroceramic
capacitors for cell phones and other electronic devices. Titanyl
sulfate productions are used in pearlescent pigments, natural gas
pipe and other specialty applications.

Manufacturing, Operations and Properties

We produce TiO: in twe crystalline forms: rutile and anatase. Rutile
Ti®, is manufactured using both a chloride production process and a sulfate
A e e T e e ey s e "‘"“‘“W’ e -:.;;-r__bn..wLw_Nr-’h"ﬂﬂiﬂm?rmlgﬁrﬁﬁr-'r:u 21 AR

: chlnrlde
, the two

customer
v chloride
its and in
ely 55% of
cted paper
ics. Once
1loride or
erformance
roprietary

form, Eupec1ally durlng perlods of Tlo; supply tlghtne
process is the preferred form for use in coatings and plastics
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processes involving <various chemical surface treatments and intensive
micronizing (milling}.

s Chloride Process - The chloride process is a continuous process in
which chlorine is used te extract rutile TiQ,. This process has also
gained market share over the sulfate process because of the
relatively lower upfront capital investment in plant and equipment
required. The chloride process produces less waste than the sulfate
process because much of the chlorine is recycled and feedstock
bearing higher titanium content is used. The chloride process also
has lower energy reguirements and is less labor-intensive than the
sulfate process. The chloride process produces an intermediate base
pigment with a wide range of properties.

* Sulfate Process - The Sulfate process is a batch process in which
sulfuric acid is used to extract the TiQ; from ilmenite or titanium

o from the impurities in the ore (mainlv iron
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We produced 550,000 metric tons of TiO, in 2011, up from the 524,000
metric tons we produced in 2010. Our TiO; production in 2011 was a new record

for us. Such production amounts include our 50% interest in the TiO,
manufacturing jeoint wventure discussed below in "Ti0, Manufacturing Jeoint
Venture.” Our average production capacity utilization Trates were

approximately 76% in 200%, near full capacity in 2010 and at full capacity in
2011. In late 2008, and as a result of the sharp decline in glcbal demand, we

experienced a build up in our inventocry levels. In order to decrease our
inventory levels and improve our liguidity, we implemented production
curtailments during the first half of 2009. Consequently, our average

production capacity utilization rates were approximately 58% during the first
half of 2009 as compared to 94% during the second half of 2009.

We operate four TiO; plants in Europe (one in each of Leverkusen,
Germany; Nordenham, Germany; Langerbrugge, Belgium; and Fredrikstad, Norway).
In MWorth America, we have a Ti0O; plant in Varennes, Quebec, Canada and,
through the manufacturing joint wventure described below in “Ti0; Manufacturing
Joint Venture,” a 50% interest in a TiQ; plant in Lake Charles, Louisiana.

Our production capacity in 2011 was 550,000 metric tons, approximately
three-fourths of which was from the chloride production process.
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The following table presents the division of our expected 2012 manufacturing
capacity by plant location and type of manufacturing process:

% of Capacity by
Ti0; Manufacturing

Frocess
Facility Description Chloride Sulfate
Leverkusen, Germany (1) TiQ, production, chloride and
sulfate process, co-products 315% 26%
Wordenham, Germany TiD, production, sulfate
process, co-products - 40
Langerbrugge, Belgium Tid, production, chloride
process, co-products,
titanium chemicals products 21 -
Fredrikstad, Norway (2) Tid; production, sulfate
process, co-products - 21
Varennes, Canada Tid; production, chloride and
sulfate process, slurry
facility, titanium chemicals
products 21 13
Lake Charles, LA, US (3] Tig, production, chleoride
process 19 -
Total 100% 100%

(1) The Leverkusen facility is located within an extensive
manufacturing complex owned by Bayer AG. We own the Leverkusen
facility, which represents about one-third of our current TiO;
production capacity, but we lease the land under the facility from
Bayer under a long-term agreement which expires in 2050. Lease
payments are pericdically negotiated with Bayer for periods of at
least two years at a time. A majority-owned subsidiary of Bayer
provides some raw materials including chlorine, auxiliary and
operating materials, utilities and services necessary to operate
the Leverkusen facility under separate supplies and services
agreements.

(2) The Fredrikstad plant is located on public land and is leased
until April 2013 with an option to extend the lease for an
additional 50 years.

(3} We operate this facility in a 50/50 joint venture with Tioxide
Bmericas Inc., a subsidiary of Huntsman Corporation and the amount
indicated in the table above represents our share of the Tio,
produced by the joint wventure. See Note 5 to our Consclidated
Financial Statements and “Ti0. Manufacturing Joint Venture.”

We own the land underlying all of our principle production facilities
unless otherwise indicated in the table above.

Cur production capacity has increased by approximately 20% over the past
ten vyears due to debottlenecking programs, with only moderate capital



expenditures, We believe that our annual attainable production capacity for
2012 is approximately 550,000 metric tons and we currently expect we will
operate at near full production capacity for the year.

We also operate two ilmenite mines in Norway pursuant to a governmental
concession with an unlimited term. In addition, we operate a rutile slurry
manufacturing plant in Lake Charles, Louisiana, which converts dry pigment
manufactured at the Lake Charles Ti0, facility for us into a slurry form that
is then shipped to customers.

We have warious corporate and administrative offices located in the
U.5., Cermany, Norway, Canada and Belgium and various sales offices located in
the U.5., Canada, Belgium, France, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom.
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n a manufacturing joint wventure, Huntsman Corporation each own a 50% interest i
~ owns and operates a chloride- Louisiana Pigment Company, L.P., or LPC. LF
uisiana. We and Huntsman share process Ti0; plant located in Lake Charles, Lc
separate offtake agreements. production from the plant equally pursuant to
:iness and affairs of the joint A supervisory committee directs the bus
lecisions. This committee is venture, including production and output ¢
point and two of whom Huntsman composed of four members, two of whom we ap
perations of the joint wventure appoints. Two general managers manage the ¢
ry committee. We appoint one acting under the direction of the supervisc
I. general manager and Huntsman appoints the othe
the TiQ; produced by the joint We are reguired te purchase one-half of
ed in our financial statements, venture. The jeoint wventure is not consolidat
for our interest in the joint because we do nct control it. We account
nture operates on a break-even venture by the equity method. The joint wve
uity in earnings of the joint basis and therefore we do not have any eg
enditures equally with Huntsman venture. We share all costs and capital exp
ing costs for the pigment grades with the exception of raw material and packag:
as cost of sales as the Ti0O, is produced. Our share of net costs is reported
Financial Statements. sold. See Notes 5 and 14 to cur Consolidated

Raw Materials

ride process Ti0; are titanium- The primary raw materials used in chlo
purchased slag}, chlorine and containing feedstock (natural rutile ore or
suppliers, while petroleum coke coke. Chlorine is available from a number of
uppliers. Titanium-containing iz available froem a limited number of s
cegss ig available from a limited feedstock suitable for use in the chloride pro
ly in Australia, South Africa, but increasing number of suppliers principal
1ase chloride process grade slag Canada, India and the United States. We purcl
long-term supply contract that from Rio Tinte Iron and Titanium under a
L Sands (PTY} LTD under a supply expires at the end cof 2016 and from Exxarc TS?
rchase upgraded slag from Q.I.T. contract that expires in December 2012. We pu
(o]
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purchased under these contracts to meet our chloride process feedstock
requirements over the next several years.

The primary raw materials used in sulfate process TiO, are titanium-
containing feedstock, primarily ilmenite or purchased sulfate grade slag and
sulfuric acid. Sulfuric acid is available from a number of suppliers.
Titanium-containing feedstock suitable for use in the sulfate process is
available from a limited number of suppliers principally in Norway, Canada,

e e Busbralia. (India_and Sonth_ Africa. _ _As one of the few verticallv-intearated  __ __ L ____
rg of sulfate process TiO;, we operate two rock ilmenite mines in produce

which provided all of the feedstock for cur European sulfate process Norway,
ants in 2011. We expect ilmenite production from our mines to meet our Tio; pl
n sulfate process feedstock regquirements for the foreseeable future. Europea
- Canadian sulfate process plant, we alsoc purchase sulfate grade slag For our
ly from Q.I1.T. Fer et Titane Inc. (a subsidiary of Rioc Tintoc Iron and primari
m}, under a long-term supply contract that expires at the end of 2014. Titaniu
=ct the raw materials purchased under Cthese contracts to meet our We exp
process feedstock requirements over the next several years. sulfate
any of our raw material contracts contain fixed guantities we are M
d to purchase, or specify a range of quantities within which we are reguire
d to purchase. The pricing under these agreements is generally regquire
Led oparterly or semizgnpuallv.depgpding, upon rthe sunnliers. g s gues o DEFOELA
e summarizes our raw materials purchased or mined in The following tabl

2011.
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The following chart shows our estimate of worldwide production capacity in
2011:

Worldwide Production Capacity - 2011

DuPont 20%
Cristal 12%
Kronos 10%
Huntsman 9%
Tronox g%
Other 41%

PuPont has over one-half of total North American Ti0Q, production
capacity and is our principal North American competitor. Tronox filed for
Chapter 11 bankruptcy protection in January 2002 and continued to operate as a
debtor-in-possession until February 2011, at which time it emerged from
Chapter 11. During 2011, Tronox agreed to participate in certain transactions
that, if approved, would give Exxarc Mineral Sands, a major producer of
titanium ore feedstock, an ownership interest in Tronox. There can be no
assurance that such transactions involving Tronox would be approved and
completed.

Over the past ten vyears, we and our competitors have increased
industry capacity through debottlenecking projects, which in part compensated
for the shut down of Ti0, plants in France, the United States, the United
Kingdom and China. 1In addition, in May 2011, Dupont announced a comprehensive
plan to add approximately 350,000 metric tons of global capacity in the next
three vears. although overall industry demand is expected to be higher in
2012 as compared to 2011 as a result of improving worldwide economic
conditions, we do not expect any other significant efforts will be undertaken
by us or our competitors to further increase capacity for the foreseeable
future, other than through debottlenecking projects. If actual developments
differ from our expectations, the Ti0; industry's performance and that of our
own could be unfaveorably affected.

The Ti0, industry is characterized by high barriers to entry consisting
of high capital costs, proprietary technology and significant lead times
{typically three to five years in our experience}! required to construct new
facilities or expand existing capacity. In addition, we believe the suppliers
of titanium-containing feedsteock do not currently have the ability to supply
the raw materials that would be required teo operate any such new TiO;
production capacity until they have invested in additional infrastructure
required to expand their own production capacity, which we believe will take a
few years to complete. We believe it is unlikely any new Ti0; plants will be
constructed in Europe or North America in the foreseeable future.

Research and Development

We employ scientists, chemists, process engineers and technicians who
are engaged in research and development, process technology and guality
assurance activities in Leverkusen, Germany. These indiwviduals have the
responsibility for improving chloride and sulfate production processes,
improving product gquality and strengthening our competitive position by

developing new applications. Our expenditures for these activities were
approximately $12 million in 2009, $13 million im 2010 and $20 million in
2011, We expect to spend approximately %22 million on research and

development in 2012.

We continually seek to improve the quality of our grades and have been
successful at developing new grades for existing and new applications to meet
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the needs of ocur customers and increase product life cycles. Since 2006, we
have added five new grades for plastics and coatings.

Patents, Trademarks, Trade Secrets and Other Intellectual Property Rights

We have a comprehensive intellectual property protection strategy that
includes obtaining, maintaining and enforecing our patents, primarily in the

United States, Canada and Europe. We also protect our trademark and trade
secret rights and have entered into license agreements with third parties
concerning various intellectual property matters. We have alsc from time to

time been involved in disputes over intellectual property.

Patents - We have obtained patents and have numercus patent applications
pending that cover our products and the technology used in the manufacture of
cur products. Our patent strategy is important to us and our continuing
business activities. In addition to maintaining our patent portfolic, we seek
patent protection for our technical developments, principally in the United
States, Canada and Eurcpe. U.S. Patents are generally in effect for 20 vears
from the date of filing. Our U.5. patent portfolic includes patents having
remaining terms ranging from one year to 20 years.

Trademarks and Trade Secrets - Our trademarks, including Kronos®, are
covered by issued and/or pending registrations, including in Canada and the
United States. We protect the trademarks that we use in connection with the
products we manufacture and sell and have developed geoodwill in connection
with our long-term use of our trademarks. We conduct research activities in
secret and we protect the confidentiality of our trade secrets through
reasonable  measures, including confidentiality agreements and security
procedures. We rely upon unpatented proprietary knowledge and continuing
technological innovation and other trade secrets to develop and maintain our
competitive position. OQur proprietary chleride production process is an
important part of our technolegy and our business could be harmed if we fail
to maintain confidentiality of ocur trade secrets used in this technology.
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we employed the following number of people: As of December 31, 2011,
1,985 Eurcpe
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_of our debt before maturitv.  We mav not be able talrﬂﬂ1naﬁq§ anv of our debt
ina Fimely ™ manner on- favorable—terme —oi b eat el fi-—the ‘current’ credits

markets. Any inability to-generate-sufficient cash flows er to refinance our
debt on favorable terms could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition.

Global climate change legislation could negatively impact our financial
results or limit our ability to operate our businesses.

We operate production facilities in several countries. In many of the
countries in which we operate, legislation has been passed, or proposed
legislation is being considered, to limit greenhouse gases through wvaricus

means, including emissions permits and/or energy taxes. In several of our
production facilities, we consume large amounts of energy, primarily
electricity and natural gas. To date, the permit system in effect in the
various countries in which we operate has not had a material adverse effect on
ocur financial results. However, 1f fu*ther greenhoLgE gas legls ﬂtlDI were Lo
— .o s T A e . - . - — -
act our future be Enacted in one or more countrleu, it could negatively imp:
Articularle as rpqu] from onerations through increased costs of nrodoction.  r
15 permitsyT it rel areq to our energy regquirements or cur need to obtain emissior
» unable to If such increased costs of production were to materialize, we may b
producticon pass price increases onto our customers to compensate for increased
results of costs, which may decrease our liguidity, operating income and

operations.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
to Item 1: Information on ocur properties is incorporated by reference
uarters 1is Manufacturing, Operations and Properties above. OQur corporate headg
Financial located in Dallas, Texas. See Note 15 to our Consclidated

Statements for information on our leases.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
tellectual We are involved in wvarious environmental, contractual, ir
tal to our property, product llahll ty and other claims aﬁd disputes inciden
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Equity compensation plan information

We have an equity compensation plan, which was approved by our
stockholders, which provides for the discretionary grant to our employees and
directors of, among other things, options to purchase our common stock and
stock awards. As of December 31, 2011 there were no options outstanding to
purchase shares of our common stock and approximately 115,500 shares were
available for future grant or issuance.

In February 2012, our board of directors voted to replace the existing
long-term incentive plan with a new plan pursuant to which an aggregate of
200,000 shares of cur common stock can be awarded to members of our board of

new.plan 18 -subseet & _snarenoiasrs ™ appLfova. RaT ~dur-May zvls Tt sk —eees e A MeectoTrs.  TRE
ting. See Note 13 to our Consolidated Financial StatementCs. shareholder mee

r Consolidated Financial Statements and Item 7 - "Management's Discussion au
d Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” an

Years ended December 31,
2007 2008 2008 2010 2011
{(In millions, except per share data
and Ti0, operating statistics)

\TEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA: ST,
et =ales § 1,310.3 % 1,316.9 & 1,142.0 5 1,44%.7 § 1,943.3 I
ross margin 251.4 220.86 130.3 345.3 Tab.4 c
ncome (loss) from operations B4.9 7.2 (15.7) 178.4 546.5 1
et income (loss) (66.7) 2.0 (34.7) 130.8 32i.0 13
let income (loss) per share B
(1), (2} (.68} .08 {.35) 1.29 2.77
‘azh dividends per share (2} .50 .50 - .125 1.075 c
LANCE SHEET DATA (at year end): BA
'otal assets $ 1,455.0 § 1,358.7 § 1,325.0 $ 1,707.5 § 1,823.9 1
lotes payable and long-term debt B
A e Y SGfrent matubities " foec2  ©'eds.s o izve O sdwe-  TU36511-
Common stockholders’ eguity (1) 411.0 317.9 312.58 761.2 924.3

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW DATA:
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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long term. However, prior to the complete utilization of such
carryforwards, if we were to generate losses in our German operations
for an extended period of time, it is possible that we might conclude
the benefit of such carryforwards would no longer meet the more-likely-
than-not recognition criteria, at which point we would be reguired to
recognize a wvaluation allowance against some or all of the then-
remaining tax benefit associated with the carryforwards.

We record a reserve for uncertain tax positions where we believe it is
more-likely-than-not our tax positions will not prevail with the
applicable tax authorities. It is possible that in the future we may
change our assessment regarding the probability that our tax positions
will prevail that would reguire an adjustment to the amount of our
reserve for uncertain tax positions that could either increase or
decrease, as applicable, reported net income in the pericd the change in
assessment was made.

In addition, we evaluate at the end of each reporting period as to
whether or not some or all of the undistributed earnings of our non-U.5.
subsidiaries are permanently reinvested (as that term is defined in
GARP) . While we may have concluded in the past that some of such
undistributed earnings are permanently reinvested, facts and
circumstances can change in the future and it is possible that a change
in facts and circumstances, such as a change in the expectation
regarding the capital needs of our non-U.S. subsidiaries, could result
in a conclusion that some or all of such undistributed earnings are no
longer permanently reinvested. In such an event, we would be reguired
to recognize a deferred income tax liability in an amount egqual to the




Comparison of 2011 to 2010 Results of Operations

Year ended December 31,
2010 2011
(Dellars in millions)

Net sales g 1,449.7 100 % & 1,943.3 100 %
Cost of sales 1,104.4 76 1,194.9 61
Gross margin 345.3 24 T48.4 39
Other operating income and expenses, net 166.9 12 201.9 11
Income from operations $ 178.4 _12 % § 546.5 28 %
%
Change
Ti0®; operating statistics:
Sales volumes* 528 503 (5)%
Production volumes#* 524 5§50 5 %
Percentage change in net sales:
TiQ; product pricing 40 %
Tid; sales volumes (5)
Ti®,; product mix (6)
Changes in currency exchange rates 5
Total _34 %
* Thousands of metric tons
Industry conditions and 2011 overview - In 2011 our production

facilities operated at full capacity rates and we increased TiQ; selling
prices throughout 2010 and 2011, resulting in increased profitability and cash
flows. Global customer demand for our Ti0; products also remained strong in
2011. Nevertheless, we experienced a softening of demand in the fourth
guarter as a result of customer destocking, and our sales volumes in 2011 were
lower as compared to 2010, with most of the lower wvolumes occurring in the
fourth gquarter. We anticipate that customer demand will rebound from the
softness experienced in the fourth gquarter, and that we will be able to
implement further TiO; selling price increases.

We experienced increased costs for our raw materials such as ore and
petroleum coke in 2011. We expect further increases in raw material costs in
2012,

Overall, based on positive market dynamics in the Ti0O; industry, we
expect our profitability and cash flows to increase in 2012 and the
foreseeable future.

Net sales - Net sales increased 34% or 5493.6 million in 2011 compared
to 2010, primarily due to a 40% increase in average Ti0O, selling prices. TiO;
selling prices will increase or decrease generally as a result of competitive
market pressures, changes in the relative level of supply and demand as well
as changes in raw material and other manufacturing costs. Based on current
conditions in the Tid; industry, as well as the expectation for increases in
our manufacturing costs discussed below, we currently expect average selling
prices in 2012 to be higher than in 2011.

While the amount of inventory available for shipment in 2011 increased
due to higher production wolumes during the year, our sales volumes were 5%

=25~



lower than in 2010 as a result of soft demand in the fourth quarter of 2011 due
to customer destocking.

In addition to the factors discussed above, we estimate the favorable
effect of changes in currency exchange rates increased our net sales Dby
approximately $70 million, or 5%, as compared teo 2010, while relative changes
in mix of the various grades of our products sold decreased our net sales by
approximately $87 million, or &%.

Cost of sales - Cost of sales increased $90.5 million or 8% in 2011
compared to 2010 due to the net impact of a 5% increase in TiQ, production
volumes, higher raw material costs of $75.1 million (primarily feedstock ore
and petroleum coke), an increase in maintenance costs of $15.0 million
{consistent with the increase in production wvolumes) and currency fluctuations
{primarily the euro}. Overall, our per metric ton cost of TiO, we produced
increased approximately 10% as compared to 2010. Cost of sales as a
percentage of net sales decreased to 61% in 2011 compared te 76% in 2010
primarily due to the effects of higher =selling prices and the benefit of
higher production wvolumes in 2011. Our Ti0, production wvolumes in 2011
established a new record for us for an annual production period. We currently
expect our feedstock ore and our other raw material costs to increase in 2012,
including significant increases in our feedstock ore costs.

Income from coperations -

Income from operations increased by $368.1
million from 5178.4 million inm 2010 to 5%546.5 million inm 2011.

Income from

operations as a percentage of net sales increased to 28% in 2011 from 12% in

2010. This increase

O ToTEEE T URUn
t of higher selling prices which more than
ifacturing costs (primarily raw materials and
cy exchange rates had a minimal effect on our
: compared to 2010.

sales, selling, general and administrative
=nt at approximately 10% and 12% for 2011 and

» {expense) - In March 2011, we redeemed €80
6.5% Senior Secured Notes. In the third and
repurchased in open market transactions an
1 amount of our 6.5% Notes. We recognized a
st charge related to the redemption and open
=5, consisting of the call premium, the write-
inancing costs and original issue discount
purchased Notes.

| 6.1 million from $38.8 million in 2010 to
net effects of the prepayment and open market
.5% Senior Secured Notes as discussed above,
e rates. The interest expense we recognize
12 eurc exchange rate.

r income tax provision was 3196.1 million in
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Comparison of 2010 to 2009 Results of Operations

Year ended
December 31,
2009 2010
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decreased to 76% in 2010 compared to 88% in 2009 primarily due to higher
selling prices in 2010 and the significantly higher production wvolumes in
2010, as we implemented temporary plant curtailments during the first half of
2009 in order to reduce our finished goods inventories to an appropriate
level. Such temporary plant curtailments resulted in approximately $80
millien of unabsorbed fixed production costs which were charged directly to
cost of sales in the first six months of 2005.

Income (loss) from operations - Income (loss) from operations increased
by $194.1 million from an operating leoss of $15.7 millicn in 2009 to operating
income of $178.4 millien in 2010. Income (loss) from operations as a
percentage of net sales increased teo 12% in 2010 from (2)% in 2009. This
increase is driven by the improvement in gross margin, which increased to 24%
for 2010 compared to 11% for 2009. Our gross margin increased primarily
because of higher sales volumes, higher selling prices and lower manufacturing
costs per ton resulting from higher production wvolumes. However, changes in
currency exchange rates negatively affected our gross margin and income (loss)
from operations. We estimate that changes in currency exchange rates
decreased income (loss) from operations by approximately $27 million in 2010
as compared to 2009,

hs a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative
expenses were relatively consistent at approximately 12% and 13% for 2010 and
2009 respectively.

Interest expense - Interest expense decreased $2.6 million from 3$41.4
million in 200% to 538.8 million in 2010 due to decreased average borrowings
under our revolving credit facilities. The interest expense we recognize will
vary with fluctuations in the euro exchange rate.

Income tax provision (bepefit) - Cur income tax provision was $5.7
million in 2010 compared to an income tax benefit of $522.2 million in 200%.
See HNote 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a tabular
reconciliation of our statutory income tax provision to our actual tax
provision. Some of the more significant items impacting this reconciliation
are summarized below.

* OQur income tax provision in 2010 includes a $535.2 million non-cash
income tax benefit related to a Eurcopean Court ruling that resulted in
the favorable resolution of certain income tax issues in Germany and an

e AP CER AR A e e B T D e B e D i T M PR e SRR E . 2 D PR At nak

am,

operating loss carryforwards.

Qur

income tax benefit for 2009 includes a non-cash benefit of 54.7

million related to a net decrease in our reserve for uncertain tax
positions, primarily as a result of the resclution of tax audits in
Belgium and Germany in the third and fourth gquarters.

Effects of Currency Exchange Rates

We have substantial operations and assets located outside the United
States f(primarily in Germany, Belgium, Norway and Canada). The majority of our
gsales from non-U.S. operations are denominated in currencies other than the
U.S. dollar, principally the euro, other major EBEuropean currencies and the
Canadian dollar. A portion of our sales generated from our non-U.S. coperations
is denominated in the U.5. dollar. Certain raw materials used worldwide,
primarily titanium-containing feedstocks, are purchased in U.5. dollars, while

labor._and other nroduction costs are purchased primarily in logal quxrencies. _ . . ___.._.
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inventory on hand at the end of 2011. Consequently, we expect our sales
volumes to increase in 2012 as compared to 2011.

We implemented significant increases in TiO; selling prices throughout
2011. Our average TiQ; =zelling prices were 40% higher in 2011 as compared to
2010, and cur average prices at the end of 2011 were 11% higher than at the
end of the third guarter of 2011 and 47% higher than at the end of 2010.
Based on the expected continuation of strong demand levels and increases in

) . L L ginggﬁaﬂi—nﬁigﬂ fofbEAd emueead helow B ﬂ"lﬁ'"-‘"}Q&‘tg oUE Sirerangae —eall]ing
fices wlil continue to increase throughout 2012, including increases to pi
Ffset the impact of our expected higher manufacturing costs. =3

Throughout 2011 we have seen significantly higher feedstock ore costs

riven by tight ore supplies and higher-than-historical increases in petroleum di
>ke and energy costs. We currently expect this trend to continue in 2012, o]
ith continued higher-than-historical increases in feedstock ore, petroleum w:
ke, energy and freight costs. 0Overall, we currently expect the per metric Ct
n cost of Ti0, we produce will increase approximately 50% to 60% in 2012 as te
smpared teo 2011 primarily due to higher feedstock ore costs. Our cost of ct
wles per metric ton of Tig; sold in 2012 is consequently expected to be =1
ignificantly higher as compared to 2011, but only after we have sold the Tid; =
roducts on hand at the end of 2011, the cost of which is significantly lower 1
Rt BB ER R R R 038 L L i s e e R R~ e R AR TR R E R kot A b AN s e n e - erE
. industry, if our costs of production exceed our current expectations in TiD
-7 T AU Le allie wemalla rwr adawy rwmdsadE SLEFOGHY, T we ToOslleve we Uoled LeUUup sdoll

higher costs through additional selling price increases.

Overall, we expect income from operations will be higher in 2012 as
compared to 2011, as the favorable effect of higher selling prices and sales
volumes will more than offset the impact of higher production costs.

Our expectations as to the future of the Ti0; industry are based upon a
number of factors beyond our control, including worldwide growth of gross
domestic product, competiticon in the marketplace, continued operation of
competitors, unexpected or earlier-than-expected capacity additions or
reductions and technological advances. If actual developments differ from our
expectations, our results of operations could be unfavorably affected.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Conegolidated cash flows

B emoms momidn d and bl -
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including bleck purchases, or in privately-negotiated transacticons at
unspecified prices and over an unspecified periocd of time. To date, we have
not made any repurchases under the plan and all 2.0 million shares are
available for repurchase. See Note 13 to our Consclidated Financial
Statements.

Capital expenditures

We intend to spend approximately 574 million to maintain and improve our
exlstlng faCllltIES durlng 2012, including approximately 526 million in the

T o 7 e B R e A e e S R T R TR R o C el B s
(- bLu i P — = e Tichier 1558 [ Eom =t 9 | < o =T e
effectiveness of our manufacturing facilities. Our capital expenditures in

the area of environmental compliance, protection and improvement include
expenditures which are primarily focused on increased operating efficiency but
also result in improved environmental protection, such as lower emissions from
our manufacturing plants. Capital spending for 2012 is expected to be funded
through cash on hand or borrowing under existing credit facilities.

Off-balance sheet financing

Other than operating lease commitments disclosed in Note 15 teo our
Consolidated Financial Statements, we are not party to any material off-
balance sheet financing arrangements.

Cash, cash egquivalents, restricted cash and marketable securities

At December 31, 2011 we had:

Held by
U.s8. Hen-U.S.

e - eem e Entities . Entities ___ Total _ ____ et e
82.5 Cash and cash egquivalents $ 5B.5 & 24.0 s

7.3 Restricted cash - 7.3

20.9 Mutual funds 20.9 -

96.4 Noncurrent marketable securities 98.4 -

- " ' . nelateu parcy CransacClons -

h related parties. See Note 14 We are party to certain transactions wit
[t is our peolicy to engage in to our Consolidated Financial Statements. ]
our opinion, no less favorable transactions with related parties on terms, in
ties. to us than could be obtained from unrelated pa:

Commitments and contingencies
ed Financial Statements for a See Notes 10 and 15 to our Consclidat
ns currently underway, certain description of certain income tax examinatio
legal proceedings and other commitments.

Recent acceocunting proncuncements

. Statements. See Note 17 to our Consolidated Financial
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At December 31,

approximately 54%, 24%, 16% and 4% of the plan

assets related to our plans in the Germany, Canada, Norway and the U.5.,

respectively.

We use several different long-term rates of return on plan

asset assumptions in determining our consclidated defined benefit pension plan
expense. This is because the plan assets in different countries are invested

in a different mix of

investments and the long-term rates of return for

different investments differ from country to country.

In determining the expected long-term rate of return on plan asset

assumptions,

we consider the long-term asset mix (e.g. eguity ws. fixed

income) for the assets for each of our plans and the expected long-term rates
of return for such asset components. In addition, we receive third-party
advice about appropriate long-term rates of return. Such assumed asset mixes

are summarized below:

¢ In Germany, the composition of our plan assets is established to satisfy
the reguirements of the German insurance commissioner.

i 2 TR e T O e R T

ies and the remaindsrt
pect the long-term rate
mately 125 basis points

t allocation of 12% to
, 7% to real estate and
stments. The expected
 approximately 8%, 4%,

nvested in The Combined
ive investment trust
investment by certain
its plans sponsored by

semes smesssame b das amees el e L RETEGES TR VTR T EIASS e B W gL R e e e L s m g

eguity securities, 45% teo fixed income securit
primarily to cash and liguid inwvestments. We ex
of return for such investments to average approxi
above the applicable equity or fixed income index

¢+ In Norway, we currently have a plan asset targe
equity securities, 72% to fixed income securities
the remainder primarily to cash and liguid inwve
long-term rate of return for such investments i
7% and 3%, respectively.

¢ In the U.S. substantially all of the assets are i
Master Retirement Trust (“CMRT"), a collect
sponsored by Contran to permit the collective
master trusts which fund certain employee benef

C. Simmons is the sole Contran and certain of 1ts affiliates. Harold
2 L e L A v, - — B e - M. . I . N S e L ¥R ¥
nittee. trustee of the CMET and is a member of the CMRT investment com
return The CMRT'=s long-term 1nvestment ocbhjective 15 to prov1de a rate of
i R T R R T S TR e o A e G e R R B t ]
utilizing {including the S&P 500 and certain Russell indices}, while
irected by both third-party investment managers as well as investments d.
investment Mr. Simmons. The CMRT holds TIMET common stock in its
portion of portfolio; however through December 31, 2009 we invested in a
3 in 2010, the CMRT which does not include the TIMET holdings. Beginning
ich stock. we began to invest in the portion of the CMRT that helds =
g8 through During the history of the CMRT from its inception in 198
uding the December 31, 2011, the average annual rate of return (incl
uch annual CMRT's investment in TIMET common stock) has been 14%, while s
has been return excluding the CMRT's investment in TIMET common stock
11.4%.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MAREKET RISK

General

Interest rates
We are t risk f3 C in inte tr
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contained 1 a separate

Financial tatements and

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

ITEM 2A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a system of disclosure controls and procedures.
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our chief executive officer and chief financial officer are also
regquired to, among other things, file quarterly certifications with the SEC
regarding the quality of our public disclosures, as required by Section 302 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The certifications for the guarter ended
I RIET L R Rt tubt e e Rl L Er R SRR, st SCHE S S BT -F S B e R i b ARt At el SR e LS Tl B E

Report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORFPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item is incorpeorated by reference to our
2012 definitive proxy statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation
14A within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this report.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information reguired by this Item is incorporated by reference to ocur
2012 proxy statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIFP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWHERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information reqguired by this Item is incorporated by reference to our
2012 proxy statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEFENDENCE

The information reguired by the Item is incorporated by reference to our
2012 proxy statement.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
{a) and {c) Financial Statements and Schedule
The Registrant
The consolidated financial statements and schedule of the
Registrant listed on the accompanying Index of Financial
Statements and Schedules (see page F-1) are filed as part of this
Annual Report.
(b} Exhibits
Included as exhibits are the items listed in the Exhibit Index.
We will furnish a copy of any of the exhibits listed below upon
payment of $4.00 per exhibit to cover our costs to furnish the
exhibits. Pursuant to Item 601(b) (4) (iii) of Regulation S-K, any
inetxupenh @efitintad it d Eet il 2l s e B R WhiER I REn R EN AR v - - ———
and other agreements related to indebtedness which do not exceed
e e e v i i e e e = LU L mamenlidsbrgdedunhe]l, sorebe . poeoE. Tesambas 27 AATA i 1T e

furnished teo the Commission upon reguest.

We will also furnish,

without charge, a copy of our amended and

restated Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, as adopted by the
board of directors on February 2, 2012, upon reguest. Such
requests should be directed to the attention of the Corporate
Secretary at our corporate offices located at 5430 LBJ Freeway,
Suite 1700, Dallas, TX 75240.

Exhibit Index

First Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Kronos
Inc. - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Registration statement on Form 10 of the Registrant (File No. 001-

Worldwide

31763) .

L}

kmended and Restated Bylaws of EKronos Worldwide, Inc. as of
October 25, 2007 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the

=] P g 4= T -F £ 3 H 3 -
Regdstrant. s.Current Reoort. on Form-A:K Sl led (Fide-Ng,, A01-30763) e
Securities and Exchange Commission on Qctober 31,

h the U.S5.

7.

Item No.







10.2

10.3*

10.4

1.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Registration statement on Form 10 of the Registrant (File No. 001-
31763) .

Intercorporate Services  Agreement by and between Contran
Corporation and Kronos Worldwide, Inc., effective as of January 1,
2004 - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q of the Registrant (File No. 001-31763) for the
quarter ended March 31, 2004.

Form of Kronos Worldwide, Inc. 2003 Long-Term Incentive Plan -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registration
statement on Form 10 of the Registrant (File No. 001-31783).

£80,000,000 Facility Agreement, dated June 25, 2002, among Kronos
Titan GmbH & Co. OHG, Kronos Europe S.A./N.V., EKronos Titan A/S
and Titania A/S, as borrowers, Kronos Titan CGmbH & Co. OHG, Kronos
Europe S.A.f/N.V. and Kronos HNorge &S, as guarantors, Kronos
Denmark ApS, as security provider, Deutsche Bank AG, as mandated
lead arranger, Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A., as agent and
security agent, and KBC Bank NV, as fronting bank, and the
financial institutions listed in Schedule 1 thereto, as lenders -
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 te the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q of ML Industries, Inc. (File No. 001-00640) for the
gquarter ended June 30, 2002.

First Amendment Agreement, dated September 3, 2004, Relating to a
Facility Agreement dated June 25, 2002 among Kronos Titan GmbH,
Kronos Europe S.A./N.V., Kronos Titan AS and Titania A/S, as
borrowers, Kronos Titan GmbH, Kronos Europe S.A./N.V. and Kronos
Worge AS, as guarantors, Kronos Denmark ApS, as security provider,
with Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A., acting as agent - incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Current Report on Form 8-K of
the Registrant dated November 17, 2004 (File No. 333-119639).

Second Amendment Agreement Relating to a Facility Agreement dated
June 25, 2002 executed as of June 14, 2005 by and among Deutsche
Bank AG, as mandated lead arranger, Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.
as agent, the participating lenders, Kronos Titan GmbH, Kronos
Europe S.A./N.V, Kronos Titan AS, Kronos Norge AS, Titania AS and
Kronos Denmark ApS - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Krones International, Inc. (File
Mo, 333-100047) for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Third Amendment Agreement Relating to a Facility Agreement dated
June 25, 2002 executed as of May 26, 2008 by and among Deutsche
Bank AG, as mandated lead arranger, Deutsche Bank Luxembourg S.A.,
as agent, the participating lenders, Kronos Titan GmbH, Kronos
Europe S5.A.,/N.V, Kronos Titan AS, Kronos Norge AS, Titania AS and
Kronos Denmark ApS - incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
the Annual Report con Form 10-K of Kronos International, Inc. (File
Mo, 333-100047) for the yvear ended December 31, 2009,

Fourth Amendment Agreement Relating to a Facility Agreement dated
June 25, 2002 executed as of BSeptember 15, 2009 by and among
Deuksche Bank AG, as mandated lead arranger, Deutsche Bank
Luxembourg S.A., as agent, the participating lenders, Kronos Titan
GmbH, Kronos EBEurope S.A./N.V., Kronos Titan AS, Kronos Norge RS,
Titania AS and Kronos Denmark ApS - incorporated by reference to
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Report on Form 10-K of Kronos
333-1000947) for the year ended

Exhibit 10.5 to the Annual
Internaticnal, Inc. (File HNo.
December 31, 200%.

Fifth Amendment Agreement Relating te a Facility Agreement dated
June 25, 2002 executed as of October 28, 2010 by and among
Deutsche Bank AG, as mandated 1lead arranger, Deutsche Bank
Luxembourg S.A., as agent, the participating lenders, Kronos Titan
GmbH, Kronos Europe S.A./W.V., Kronos Titan AS, Kronos Norge AS,
Titania AS and Kronos Denmark ApS - incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Kronos
Internaticnal, Inc. dated Octocher 28, 2010 (File No. 333-100047).

Lbetrween Farhenfahriken, Baver

L g (e R i e e

Bktiengesel 15L1d[L and Tit angesellscraft mit beschran}

(German language version and English

translatior

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Annu

Form 10-K (File HNo.
ended December 31, 1985.

001-00840)0f NL Industries,

Inc. |

October 18, 10.11 Master Technology Exchange BAgreement, dated as of
1c. ), Kronos 1993, among Kronos Worldwide, Inc. (f/kfa HKronos, Ir
roup Limited Louwisiana, Inc., Kronos International, Inc., Tioxide G
reference to and Tioxide Group Serwvices Limited - incorporated by
le Wo. 001- Exhibit 10.8 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Fj
sptember 30, 00640) of NL Industries, Inc. for the gquarter ended S5
1893,
v of January 10.12 Form of Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated as
‘onos  (USA), 1, 1999, between Kronos Inc. (formerly known as Kr
3wy reference Inc.) and Kronos International, Inc. - incorporated b
Registration o e e e .59 Exhibit 10,8 tp Kronps International. Inc.'s
Statement on Form S5-4 (File No. 333-100047).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15{d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Kronos Worldwide, Inc.

(Registrant)

By:/s/ Steven L. Watson
Steven L. Watson
March 5, 2012
(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer)

Pursuant to the reguirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1334,
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REFORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Krones Worldwide, Inc.:

In our oplnlon. the accompanylng cansalldated halance sheets and the

ies at December 31, 2010 and 2011 and the results of th51r subsidiar

s and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period operation
:ember 31, 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally ended Dec
in the United States of America. TIn addition, in our opinion, the accepted
statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents financial
n all material respects, the information set forth therein when read fairly, 1
ction with the related consolidated financial statements. Also in in conjun
ion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective our opin:
control over financial reporting as of December 21, 2011, based on internal
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the criteria

Plmsamed =
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Company's management is responsible for these financial statements and
financial statement schedule, for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9&. Our responsibility
iz toc express opinions on these financial statements, on the financial
statement schedule, and on the Company's internal control over financial
reporting based on our audits (which were integrated audits in 2011 and
2009} . We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Owversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the fln&nﬂlal statements are free of material misstatement and

mever FiHancial reporting was maintaimed an S “ Tihéfner “éffécfive TintesmalmEsit rol
;n';f'a igh-aaﬂ EEEa Wﬂ:aunﬁga Eﬁ%ﬁgﬁl{@ :&ngeg.muunta RN -ZLECLOEIL TS a'l 1 material respects tﬂﬂlli?h'rﬂgéu%
ncial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and in the fina

estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall significant
tatement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial s
:porting included chtaining an understanding of internal control financial re
al reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, over financi
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal and testing
«d on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such control base
lures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe other procec
its provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. that our aud
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KRONOS WORLDWIDE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In millions, except per share data)

ASSETS December 31,
2011




ERONOS WORLDWIDE,

INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)

(In millions, except per share data)

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY December 31,
2010 2011
Cornept,lianili tieses. =
Current maturities of long-term debt 5 2.2 5 2.2
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 196.6 285.8
Payables to affiliates 9.6 8.6

-

'
4.7

6.2
Les 220.1 328.0
537.4 362.9
33.2 41.0
119.5 127.6
afits cost 10.6 1z2.7
25.6 27.4
ities 726.3 571.6
1e; 60.0 shares
zed; 115.9 and 115.9
1.2 1.2
1,398.8 1,399.0
(486.5) (290.1)
sive income (loss):
- 5.1
{65.1}) (91.8)
alans ({B9.0) (99.2)
JPEB} plans 1.8 .1
ity 7561.2 924.3

LIt AT D

Deferred income taxes

Total current liabiliti
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Reccrued pension cost
Accrued postretirement bens
Other

Total noncurrent liabil

Stockholders' egquity:

Common stock, $.01 par val
and 240.0 shares authori:
shares issued

Additional paid-in capital

Retained deficit

Accumulated other compreher
Marketable securities
Currency translation
Defined benefit pension i
Postretirement benefit (¢

Total stockholders'

equ




KRONOS WORLDWIDE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In millions, except per share data)

Years ended quenﬂ:\er 3l,

"rom operati




KRONOS WORLDWIDE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

{(In millions)

Years endﬂd_ggcember 31,
Net incomes

(loss) ,

Pension plans:
EBmortization of pri
transit 1i

Lranslition o igatien and n
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- FEUNDE WORLDWLLE, 1NC, ARDSOSIDARIES -7 -
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTE OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

{(In millions)

B oy el B2 T q & Ly O [ SPTTTIT =0,

2009 2010 2011
1 flows from financing activities: Casl
ndebtedness: I
Sorrowingg 284 .5 229.0 113.3
Principal payments (333.7) (256.2) (288.1)
ieferred financing fees {.8) {.8) - L
‘ssuance of common stock - 337.8 - I
rividends paid = {14.5) (124.86) L
ither, net - - (.2) C
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities (49.8) 285.1 (299.6)
1 and cash egquivalents - net change from: Casl
yerating, investing and financing Of
activities s 12.8 5 275.3 $ (222.1)
‘fect of exchange rate changes on cash _ 4.7 1.7) (.1) Ef
Wet change for the year 17.5 273.6 (222.2)
Balance at beginning of year 3.6 31.1 304.7
Balance at end of vear 5 31.1 5 3ip4.7 3 g2.5
plemental disclosures - Sup

Cash paid for:

Interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 33.4 5 36.3 5 35.3

Income taxes 2.7 24.0 104.7
eIy ! - o e
BT REE o ?

sxpenditures . . " for capital

b w s ww —aa —rm . - [ P o T R B N R




FRONOS WORLDWIDE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hote 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies:

Organization and basis of presentation -
Inc. (NYSE:VHI) held approximately 50% of
NL ries, (NYSE:NL} held approx
stock, ) i ow )
[iw) E%
ndi

=L
outsta




the extent the restricted amount does not relate to a recognized
liability, we classify restricted cash as a current asset. GSee Note 7.

Marketable securities and securities transactions - We carry marketable
debt and equity securities at fair wvalue. Accounting Standard Codification
(“ASC*) Topic 820, Fair WValue Measurements and Disclosures, establishes a
consistent framework for measuring fair walue and (with certain exceptions)
this framework is generally applied to all financial statement items required
to be measured at fair wvalue. The standard requires fair walue measurements to
be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

¢ Level 1 - Unadjusted gquoted prices in active markets that are
accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets
or liabilities;

¢ Level 2 - Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs
which are chservahle, either directly or indirectly, for substantially
the full term of the assets or liability; and

* Level 3 - Prices or valuation technigues that require inputs that are
both significant to the fair value measurement and uncbservable.

We classify all of our marketable securities as available-for-sale and
unrealized gains or losses on these securities are recognized through other
comprehensive income, ﬂxccpt for any decline in walue we conclude is other

T gafﬂﬁrgia \S%EEE“KEan” lﬁh l“ ;%gm¢1%§%bE$FJ¥ﬁE ”§54§¥¥%f5§5g;ﬁfﬁ Eeadized. oo oo

We evaluate our investments whenever events or conditions occur to
indicate that the fair wvalue of such investments has declined below their
carrying amounts. If the carrving amount for an investment declines below
its historical cost basis, we evaluate all available positive and negative
evidence inecluding, but not limited to, the extent and duration of the
impairment, business prospects for the investee and our intent and ability teo
hold the investment for a reasonable period of time sufficient for the
recovery of fair wvalue. If we determine the decline in fair wvalue is other
than temporary, the carrying amount of the investment is written down to fair
value.

See MNotes 6, 11 and 16&.

Accounts receivable - We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts for
known and estimated potential losses arising from sales to customers based on
a pericdic review of these accounts.

O maies -~ TRETECHLE CLvedogetds ~FL mole m Lawdis et oh s dmereembssdas cab ke A nVERCerles - a0 E95C-
wance for obsclete and slow-moving inventories. We cost or market, net of allo
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nto costs for raw materials, the cost te manufacture the raw materials i
o, finished goods and overhead. Depending on the inventory's stage of completi
ng, our manufacturing costs can include the costs of packing and finishi
ith utilities, maintenance, depreciation, and salaries and benefits associated w
on our manufacturing process. We allocate fixed manufacturing overheads based
ods normal production capacity. Unallocated overhead costs resulting from peri
hs with abnormally low production levels are charged to expense as incurred.

ame inventory is =old to third parties, we recognize the cost of sales in the s
for perlcu that the sale Dcrurs We pericdically revi cw SUr 1nventcry
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EEtlmthd abgolcscenre or instances when inventory is no lcnger marketable fcr




Investment in TiO:. manufacturing Joint
investment in a 50%-
ce S

venture - We account for our
manufacturing joint wventure the equity method.

st, including capital:
ucticn pericd of major ¢

co
str
mill

1 We compute
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in which
of

ing the tax
sharing agreement, we make pa
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and
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million
is not at December

e practical for us




in 2011. 5 osts incurred and these ¢
million -
certain : ical I . ; incurred

| i in 2010




Note 3 - JAccounts and other receivables:
December 31,

2010 2011
{In millions)

5§ 247.

Trade receivables
other receivables

Recoverable VAT a
Refundable inc
Allowance for doubtful

accounts

Total

Hote 4 - Inventories:
December 31,
2010 2011
(In millions)

s 89.6
17.3
280.7
56.6

§ 444.2




Summary balance sheets of LPC are shown below:

December 31,
2010 2011
{(In millions)

ASSETS
Current asse

Property and ¢




Fair wvalue Unrealized

measurement Market Cost gains
Marketable security level value basis (losses)
December 31, 2010:
Noncurrent assets:
TIMET common stock 1 5 46.9 S 46.9 s -
Valhi common stock 1 2.7 2.7 -
NL and CompX common stocks 1 .1 .1 -
Total £.48.7 § 49.7 s -
Dacembeaer 31, 2011:
Current assets:
Mutual funds 1 5 20.9 § 21.1 § (.2)
Noncurrent assets:
TIMET common stock 1 63.6 73.9 (10. 3}
: ';;"-I -||-: -_‘ .1““._‘:1_- . L 1Fo 1 - i 1.

ion bhares 2.4%, cf TIMET'= oucstaﬁd1ﬂg Common stcck and approximately .6 mlll
CompX and of Valhi's common stock. We also held a nominal number of shares of
ion shares NL common stocks. During 2011, we purchased an aggregate of 1.5 mill
ck for an of TIMET common stock and .5 million shares of Valhi common sto
| 2010, an aggregate of 527.0 million and $12.6 mwillion, respectively (during
shares of aggregate of 2.7 million shares of TIMET common stock and .1 million
1 and $2.7 Valhi common stock were purchased for an aggregate of $46.% millior
ire market million, respectively). At December 31, 2011, the guoted per sh:
spectively price of TIMET's and Valhi's common stock was $14.98 and %60.47, re

{December 31, 2010 - $517.18 and $22.11, respectively).

The TIMET. Valhi. Ccmmx and NL cnmmmnn Lccks WE_ OWIL axe subie

Delawale Corporatlon Law, but we do receive dividends frcn1 Ualhl on these

shares, when declared and paid.

Because we have classified all of our marketable securities as
available-for-sale, any unrealized gains or losses on the securities are
recognized through other comprehensive income, With respect to our
investment in TIMET, our cost basis has continuously exceeded 1ts market
value since October 2011, but we consider such decline in market price to be
temporary at December 31, 2011. We conszidered all awvailable evidence in
reaching this conclusion, including our abkility and intent to hold this
investment for a reasonable periocd of time sufficient for the recovery of
£a1r value, as evidenced by the amount of ligquidity we currently have with

—_—— e a2, —_— N A — E LR L - T LT Ve wd=lbeear “d - = e ——
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Senior Secured Notes In April

2006, Kronos Inte

("KII"), one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, issued
} due 2013 at 99.306%
million when issued We collat

amount of lecured 5 [“6.5%

incur ,  1lncur
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among other things
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ur European credit
5.0 million when repaid}.
nding borrowings under ou
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Components of income tax expense

Currently pavable (refundable):

U.5. federal and state
Hon-U. 5.

Deferred income taxes (benefit):

U.5. federal and state
Non-U.5.

Provisieon for income taxes

{benefit) :

({benefit)

Comprehensive provision for income taxes

(benefit) allocable to:
Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Pension plans
OPEB plans
Marketable securities

Total

The components of our net deferred income

2011 are summarized in the following table.

F-23

Years ended December 31,

2010 2011
{(In millicns)

s 16.7 52.0
16.2 T8.7
32.9 130.7
(3.4} 3.9

{19.8) 61.5
(23.2}) 65.4
§ 9.7 § 196.1

Years ended December 31,

2010 2011
(In millions)

] 5.7 § 196.1

{2.8) {3.3)

1.3 (.7)

- 3.1

$ 8.2 $.195.2
December 2010 and



December 31,
2010 2011
Assets Liabilitiegs Assgets Liabilities
(In millions)

Tax effect of temporary differences
related to:
Inventories 5 2.0 % (3.8) % 7.5 & (6.4)
Property and eguipment - {62.4) - (67.3)
hcecrued postretirement benefits
other than pension (“OPEB")

costs 3.1 - 3.7 -
Accrued pension cost 7.4 - 10.9 -
Other accrued liabilities and

deductible differences 16.0 - 12.5 -
Other taxakble differences - (5.5} - (6.7)
Tax on unremitted earnings of

non-U.5. subsidiaries - {3.2) - {14.4)
Tax loss and tax credit

carryforwards 205.6 - 156.1 -
Valuation allowance {.5) - {.2) -
Adjusted gross deferred tax -

assetz (liabilities) 233.6 (74.9) 120.5 (94.8)

Wetting of items by tax
jurisdiction (37.0) 37.0 (47.6) 47 .6
196.6 (37.9) 142.9 (47.2)

Less net current deferred tax asset
(liability) 4.6 (4.7) 9.9 (6.2)

Net noncurrent deferred tax
asset (liability) § 1%2.0 § (33.2) § 133.0 5§ (41.0)

Qur provision for income taxes in the third and fourth guarters of 2011
includes an aggregate of 517.2 million for U.S. incremental income taxes on
current earnings repatriated from our German subsidiary, which earnings were
used to fund a portion of the repurchases of our Seniocr Secured Notes
discussed in Note 9. In addition, we accrue U.S8. incremental income taxes on
the earnings of our Canadian subsidiary, which earnings we previously
determined are not permanently reinvested.

As a consequence of a European Court ruling that resulted in a
favorable resclution of certain income tax issues in Germany, during the
first guarter of 2010 the German tax authorities agreed to an increase in our
German net operating loss carryforwards. Bocecordingly, we recognized a non-
cash income tax benefit of $35.2 million in the first guarter of 2010.

Following the resolution of tax audits in Belgium and Germany in the
third and fourth gquarters of 2009, we de-recognized %4.7 million of our
reserve for uncertain tax positions primarily related to the audit
resolution.

Tax authorities are examining certain of our non-U.S. tax returns and
have or may propose tax deficiencies, including penalties and interest.
Because of the inherent uncertainties involved in settlement initiatives and
court and tax proceedings, we cannot guarantee that these tax matters will be
resolved in cur favor, and therefore our potential exposure, if any, is also
uncertain. In 2011 we received notices of re-assessment from the Canadian
federal and provincial tax authorities related to the years 2002 through



2004. We object to the re-assessments and believe the positien is without
merit. Accordingly, we are appealing the re-assessments and in connection
with such appeal we were reguired to post letters of credit aggregating Cdn.
5.2 million (see Note 9). 1In February 2012, and in conjunction with the re-
assegsment notices received in 2011, we posted an additicnal letter of credit
of Cdn. $2.1 million. If the full amount of the proposed adjustment were
ultimately to be assessed against us the cash tax liability would be
approximately $£11.6 million. We believe we have adeguate accruals for
additional taxes and related interest expense which could ultimately result
from tax examinations. We believe the wultimate disposition of tax
examinations should not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

We accrue interest and penalties on our uncertain tax positions as a
component of our provision for income taxes. The amount of interest and
penalties we accrued during 2009, 2010 and 2011 was not material, and at
December 31, 2009, 2010, and 2011, we had $2.5 millien, 5$2.7 million and $2.1
million, respectively, accrued for interest and penalties for our uncertain
tax positions.

The following table shows the changes in the amount of our uncertain
tax positions (exclusive of the effect of interest and penalties) during
2009, 2010 and 2011:

Year Ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011
(In millions)

Changes in unrecognized tax benefits:
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of

Year 5 10.4 $§ 7.0 § 7.9
Net increase (decrease):
Tax positions taken in prior pericds {5.0) (.1} + 3
Tax positions taken in current period .9 B 1.0
Change in currency exchange rates .7 .4 {.4)
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year § 7.0 £ 7.9 8.8

If our uncertain tax positions were recognized, a benefit of $9.5
million, %510.6 million and 511.2 million would affect our effective income
tax rates for 2009, 2010 and 2011 respectively. We currently estimate that
our unrecognized tax benefits will not change materially during the next
twelve months.

We file income tax returns in various U.S. federal, state and local
Jurisdictions. We alse file income tax returns in various non-U.S.
jurisdictions, principally in Germany, Canada, Belgium and Norway. Our U.S.
income tax returns pricr to 2008 are generally considered closed to
examination by applicable tax authorities. Our non-U.5. income tax returns
are generally considered closed to examination for wvears prior to 2007 for
Germany, 2008 for Belgium, 2006 for Canada and 2002 for Norway.

At December 31, 2011, we had the egquivalent of $79% million and S188
million of net operating loss carryforwards for German corporate and trade
tax purposes, respectively. At December 31, 2011, we have concluded that no
deferred income tax asset wvaluation allowance is required to be recognized
with respect to such carryforwards, principally  because (i) such
carryforwards have an indefinite carryforward period, (ii) we have utilized a
portion of such carryforwards during the most recent three-year period and
(iii) we currently expect to utilize the remainder of such carryforwards over
the 1long term. However, prior to the complete utilization of these

F-25



carryforwards, particularly if the economic recovery were to be short-lived
or we generate operating losses in our German operations for an extended
period of time, it is possible we might conclude the benefit of the
carryforwards would no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition
criteria, at which point we would be required to recognize a valuation
allowance against some or all of the then-remaining tax benefit associated
with the carryforwards.

Note 11 - Employee benefit plans:

Defined contribution plans - We maintain wvarious defined contribution
pension plans with our contributions based on matching or other £formulas.
Defined contribution plan expense approximated $1.0 million in 200%, $1.2
million in 2010 and $1.5 million in 2011.

Accounting for defined benefit and postretirement benefits other than
pensions (“OPEB”) plans - We recognize an asset or liability for the over or
under funded status of each of our indiwidual defined benefit pension plans on
our Consclidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the funded status of these plans
are recognized either in net income (loss}), to the extent they are reflected in
periodic benefit cost, or through other comprehensive income (loss).

Defined benefit plans - We sponsor various defined benefit pension plans.
Non-U.5. employees are covered by plans in their respective countries and a
majority of U.S5. employees are eligible to participate in a contributory
savings plan. The benefits under ocur plans are based upon years of service and
employes compensation. our funding policy is to contribute annually the
minimum amount required under ERISA (or equivalent non-U.5.} regulations plus
additional amounts as we deem appropriate.

We expect to contribute the equivalent of approximately $26.4 million
to all of our defined benefit pension plans during 2012. Benefit payments to
plan participants ocut of plan assets are expected to be the equivalent of:

Years ending December 31, Amount
{In millions)

2012 % 24.5
2013 25.4
2014 25.4
201s 25.1
201s 24.8
HNext 5 years 136.9



The funded status of our non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans is
presented in the table below.

Years ended
December 31,
2010 2011
(In millions)

Change in projected benefit obligations (“PBO"):

Benefit obligations at bkeginning of the year § 423.7 § 446.0
Bervice cost 10.4 11.2
Interest cost 21.9 23.86
Participant contributions 1.7 1.9
Actuarial losses 24.9 18.0
Plan amendments 1.8 -
Change in currency exchange rates {18.0) (13.4)
Benefits paid {22.4) (27.0)
Benefit chligaticns at end of the year 446.0 460.3

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 306.9 327.3
Actual return on plan assets 26.7 18.3
Employer contributions 24.5 25.2
Participant contributions 1.7 1.9
Change in currency exchange rates (10.1}) (9.5}
Eenefits paid (22.4) {27.0}
Fair value of plan assets at end of year _ 327.3 336.2
Funded status $(118.7) $(124.1)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet:
Noncurrent pension asset S .3 5 -
Accrued pension costs:
Current (1.3) {1.3)
Noncurrent {117.7) (122.8)
Total $(118.7) $(124.1)
Roecumulated other comprehensive loss:
Actuarial losses $ 115.7 § 128.8
Prior service cost T.7 6.5
Net transition obligations 2.2 1.7
Total $ 129.8 £ 137.0
Accumuelated benefit cohligations (“ABO") 5 414.7 5 428.1

In the fourth gquarter of 2010, we amended our benefit formula for most
participants of our Canadian and Belgium plans effective January 1, 2011,
resulting in a prior service cost of approximately $3.8 million as of
December 31, 2010. Key assumpticns as of December 31, 2010 and thereafter
now reflect these plan revisions to the benefit formula.

The components of our net pericdic defined benefit pension cost for our
non-U.5. defined benefit pension plans are presented in the table below.
During 2011, certain eligible participants elected teo take lump sum
distributions upon their retirement, resulting in a nominal settlement charge



in 2011. The amounts shown below for the amortization of prior service cost,
net transition obligations and recognized actuarial losses for 2009, 2010 and
2011 were recognized as components of our accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) at December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively, net of
deferred income taxes.

Yearg ended December 31,

2008 2010 2011
(In millions)

Het periocdic pension cost:

Service cost benefits S B8.86 S 10.4 $ 11.2
Interest cost on PBO 22.1 21.9 23.6
Expected return on plan assets {15.4) (16.5) (17.8)
Zettlement losses - - .5
Recognized actuarial losses 5.5 5.5 6.6
mortization of prior service cost .8 .9 1.2
Amortization of net transition obligations .5 .5 «5

Total § 22.2 5 22.7 $ 26.0

Certain information concerning our non-U.5. defined benefit pension
plans is presented in the table bhelow.

December 31,
2010 2011
{(In millions)

Plans for which the ABO exceeds plan assets:

FEO 5 386.2 £ 460.3
AEBO 162.2 428.1
Fair value of plan assets 268.5 336.2

The weighted-average rate assumptions used in determining the actuarial
present value of benefit obligations for our non-U.35. defined benefit pension
plans as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 are presented in the table below.

Rate December 31,
2010 2011
Discount rate 5.1% 4,9%
Increase in future compensation levels 3.1% 3.2%

The weighted-average rate assumptions used in determining the net
pericdic pension cost for our non-U.S8. defined benefit pension plans for 2009,
2010 and 2011 are presented in the table below.

Rate Years ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011

Discount rate 5.9% 5.5% 5.1%
Increase in future compensation levels 3.2% 3.1% 3.1%
Long-term return on plan assets 5.9% 5.5% 5.5%

Variances from actuarially assumed rates will result in increases or
decreases in accumulated pension obligations, pension expense and funding
requirements in future periods.



The funded status of our U.S. defined benefit pension plan is presented
in the table below.

Years ended December 31,

2010 2011
(In millions)

Change in PBO:

Benefit obligations at beginning of the year £ 14.6 £ 15.9
Interest cost .9 .9
Actuarial losses 1.2 1.8
Benefits paid (.8) {.8)
Benefit obligations at end of the year ___15.8 17.8
Change in plan assets:
Fair walue of plan assets at beginning of the year 11.8 14.0
Actual return on plan assets 2.9 [.4)
Employer contributions .1 .1
Benefits paid (.8} {.8)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year _14.0 1z.9
Funded status 5§ (1.9) § (4.9)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet:
Accrued pension costs:
Current 5 {.1) $ (.1)
Noncurrent {1.8) (4.8)

Total 5 (1.9} § (4.9)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss-

actuarial losses g 7.1 £ 10.4
REO 5 15.9 § 17.8

The components of our net periocdic defined benefit pension cost for our
U.5. defined benefit pension plan is presented in the table below. The amounts
shown below for recognized actuarial losses for 2002, 2010 and 2011 were
recognized as components of our accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
at December 31, 2008, 2009% and 2010 respectively, net of deferred income
taxes.

Years ended December 31,

2008 2010 2011
(In millions)

Net periodic pension cost (income) :

Interest cost on PBEO 5 .9 5 .9 $ .9
Expected return on plan assets (1.1) (1.09 (1.4)
Recognized actuarial losses .3 .2 «3

Total 5 .1 5 .1 5 (.2)

The discount rate assumptions used in determining the actuarial present
value of the bhenefit obligation for our U.S. defined benefit pension plan as of
December 31, 2010 and 2011 are 5.1% and 4.2%, respectively. The impact of
assumed increases in future compensation levels does not have an effect on the
benefit obligation as the plan is frozen with regards to compensation.



The weighted-average rate assumptions used in determining the net periodic
pension cost for our U.S. defined benefit pension plan for 2009, 2010 and
2011 are presented in the table below. The impact of assumed increases in
future compensation levels does not have an effect on the pericdic pension
cost as the plan is frozen with regards to compensation.

Rate Years ended December 31,
2009 2010 2011
Discount rate 6.1% 5.7% 5.1%
Long-term return con plan assets 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%

Variances from actuarially assumed rates will result in increases or
decreases in accumulated pension cobligations, pension expense and funding
reguirements in future periods.

The amounts shown in the above tables for actuarial losses, prior
gervice cost and net transition cobligations at December 31, 2010 and 2011
have not yet been recognized as components of our periocdic defined benefit

pension cost as of those dates. These amounts will be recognized as
components of our periodic defined benefit cost in future vyears and are
recognized, net of deferred income taxes, in our accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) at December 2010 and 2011, We expect

approximately $8.5 million, $1.1 million and $.4 million of the unrecognized
actuarial losses, prior service c¢osts and net transition obligations,
respectively, will be recognized as components of our consolidated net
periodic defined benefit pension cost in 2012.

The table below details the changes in our consolidated other
comprehensive income (loss) during 2009, 2010 and 2011.

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011
(In millions)

Changes in plan assets and benefit chligations
recognized in other comprehensive income (loss):
Current year:

Net actuarial gain (loss) 5 2.8 5 (13.9) $ (19.8)
Plan amendments - (3.8) -
Settlements - - .5
Amortization of unrecognized:
Wet actuarial losses 5.5 5.7 6.9
Prior service cost .B .9 1.2
Net transition obligations .5 .5 .5
Total 5..9.6 §.li0.6) & (10.7)

In determining the expected long-term rate of return on plan asset
assumptions, we consider the long-term asset mix (e.g. eguity vs. fixed
income) for the assets for each of our plans and the expected long-term rates
of return for such asset components. In addition, we receive third-party
advice about appropriate leong-term rates of return. Such assumed asset mixes
are summarized below:

* In Germany, the composition of our plan assets is established to
satisfy the requirements of the German insurance commissioner. our
German pension plan assets represent an investment in a large
collective investment fund established and maintained by Baver AG in
which several pension plans, including our German pension plan and
Bayer's pension plans, have invested. ©Our plan assets represent a wvery
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nominal portion of the total collective investment fund maintained by

Bayer. These plan assets are a Level 3 input because there is not an
active market that approximates the wvalue of our investment in the
Bayer investment fund. We determine the fair walue of the Bayer plan

assets based on periodic reports we receive from the managers of the
Bayer plan. These pericdic reports are subject teo audit by the German
pension regulator.

In Canada, we currently have a plan asset target allocatien of 55% to
equity securities and 45% to fixed income securities. We expect the
long-term rate of return for such investments to average approximately
125 basis points above the applicable eqguity or fixed income index.
The Canadian assets are Level 1 input because they are traded in active
markets.

In Norway, we currently have a plan asset target allocation of 12% to
equity securities, 72% to fixed income securities, 7% to real estate
and the remainder primarily to liguid investments such as money
markets. The expected long-term rate of return for such investments 1is
approximately B%, 4%, 7% and 3%, respectively. The majority of
Norwegian plan assets are Level 1 inputs because they are traded in
active markets; however approximately 10% of our Norwegian plan assets
are invested in real estate and other investments not actively traded
and are therefore a Level 3 input.

In the U.S., substantially all of the assets were invested in The
Combined Master Retirement Trust (“CMRT"), a cellective investment
trust sponsored by Contran to permit the collective investment by
certain master trusts which fund certain employee benefit plans
sponsored by Contran and certain of its affiliates.

The CMRT's long-term investment objective is to provide a rate of return
exceeding a composite. of breoad market eguity and fixed income indices
(including the S&P 500 and certain Russell indices} while utilizing both
third-party investment managers as well as investments directed by Mr.
Simmons. Mr. Simmons is the sole trustee of the CMRT. The trustee of
the CMRT, along with the CMRT's investment committee, of which Mr.
Simmons is a member, actively manage the investments of the CMRT.

The CMRT trustee and investment committee do not maintain a specific
target asset allocation in order to achieve their objectives, but instead
they periodically change the asset mix of the CMRT based upon, among
other things, advice they receive from third-party advisors and their
expectations regarding |potential returns for wvarious  investment
alternatives and what asset mix will generate the greatest overall
return. The CMRT holds TIMET common stock in its investment portfolio;
however through December 31, 200% we invested in a portion of the CMRT
which does not include the TIMET holdings. Beginning in 2010, we began
to invest in the portion of the CMRT that holds such stock. During the
history of the CMRT from its inception in 1988 through December 31,
2011, the average annual rate of return (inecluding the CMRT's
investment in TIMET common stock) has been 14%, while such annual
return excluding the CMRT's investment in TIMET common stock has been
11.4%. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, the assumed
long-term rate of return for plan assets invested in the CMRT was 10%.
In determining the appropriateness of the long-term rate of return
assumption, we primarily rely on the historical rates of return achieved
by the CMRT, although we consider other factors as well inecluding, among
cther things, the investment objectives of the CMRT's managers and their
expectation that such historical returns will in the future continue to
be achieved over the long-term.
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The CMRT unit wvalue is determined semi-monthly, and the plans have the
ability to redeem all or any portion of their investment in the CMRT at
any time based on the most recent semi-monthly wvaluation. However, the
plans do not have the right to individual assets held by the CMRT and the
CMRT has the sole discretion in determining how to meet any redemption
request. For purposes of our plan asset disclosure, we consider the
investment in the CMRT as a Level 2 input because (i) the CMRT wvalue is
established semi-monthly and the plans have the right to redeem their
investment in the CMRT, in part or in whole, at anytime based on the most
recent value and (ii) chservable inputs from Level 1 or Level 2 were used
to value approximately B4% of the assets of the CMRT at Decembper 31, 2010
and 2011, as noted below. The aggregate fair wvalue of all of the CMRT
assets, including funds of Contran and its other affiliates that also
invest in the CMRT, and supplemental asset mix details of the CMRT as of
December 31, 2010 and 2011, are as follows:

2010 2011
(In millions)

CMRT asset wvalue 2714 .9 £ 659.5

CMRT fair wvalue inputb:

Level 1 83 % B2 %
Level 2 1 1
Level 3 16 7
100 % 100 %
CMRT asset mix:
Domestic eguities, principally publicly traded 73 % 75 %
Internaticnal eguities, publicly traded 2 2
Fixed income securities, publicly traded 16 14
Privately managed limited partnerships 8 8
Other 1 1
100 % 100 %
® We alsc have plan assets in Belgium and the United Xingdom. The

Belgian plan assets are invested in certain individualized fixed income
insurance contracts for the benefit of each plan participant as
required by the local regulators and are therefore a Level 3 input.
The United Kingdom plan assets consist of marketable securities which
are Level 1 inputs because they trade in active markets.

We regularly review our actual asset allocation for each plan, and will
pericdically rebalance the investments in each plan to more accurately reflect
the targeted allocation and/or maximize the owverall long-term return when
considered appropriate.

The composition of cur December 31, 2010 and 2011 pension plan assets
by fair walue level is shown in the table below. The amounts shown for plan
assets invested in the CMRT include a nominal amount of cash held by our U.S.
pensicon plan which is not part of the plan's investment in the CMRT.



Germany
Canada:
Local currency eguities
Non local currency equities
Local currency fixed income
Non local currency fixed
income
Cash and other
Horway :
Local currency equities
Neon local currency equities
Local currency fixed income
Non local currency fixed
income
Cash and other
U.s.
CMRT
Other

Total

Germany
Canada:
Local currency eguities
Non local currency equities
Local currency fixed income
Cash and other
Horway:
Local currency equities
Non local currency eguities
Local currency fixed income
Non local currency fixed
income
Real estate
Cash and other
.s.
CMET
Other

Total

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2010

Quoted Significant

Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable Uncbservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2} ({Level 3)
(In millions)

& 176.2 & - g - & 176.2
19.6 19.6 - -
2B.3 2B.3 - -
30.7 30.7 - -

.2 .2 - -
2.4 2.4 - -
11.5 11.5 - -
L2 L2 -
42.3 15.9 - 26.4
3.5 -] - 3.0
1.2 B - =3
14.0 «3 13.7
11.2 2.5 - 8.7
§ 341.3 g _112.7 & .13.7 § 214.9

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011

Quoted Significant

Prices in Other Significant
Active Observable TUnocbservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3}
(In millions)
£ 187.2 -] - = - § 187.2
18.1 18.1 - -
28.0 28.0 - -
33.8 33.8 E -
2.4 2.4 - -
2.0 2.0 E -
3.7 3.7 - -
35.9 35.9 - -
4.3 & - -
5.1 - - 5.1
6.3 ] - 1
1z2.8 .1 12.7
9.4 2.5 - 6.9
S 349.0 % 135.7 5 12,7 S 200.6




A rollforward of the change in fair wvalue of Level 3 assets follows.

2000 2011
(In millions)

Fair wvalue at beginning of year $ 207.1 $ 214.9
Gain on assets held at end of year 15.9 18.8
Gain on assets sold during the year 1.5 1.8
Agsets purchased 20.0 18.6
Assets sold (15.9) (18.1)
Transfers out - (29.2)
Currency exchange rate fluctuations (13.7) (6.2)

Fair value at end of year § 214.9 $ 200.6
Postretirement benefits other than pensions (“OPEB”) - We provide certain

health care and 1life insurance benefits for eligible retired employees.
Certain of our Canadian employees may become eligible for such postretirement
health care and life insurance benefits if they reach retirement age while
working for us. In the U.S., employees who retired after 1998 are not
entitled to any such benefits. The majority of all retirees are reguired to
contribute a portion of the cost of their benefits and certain current and
future retirees are eligible for reduced health care benefits at age 65. We
have no OPEB plan assets, rather, we fund medical claims as they are paid.
Benefit payments to OPEB plans are expected to be the equivalent of:

Years ending December 31, Emount
(In millions)

2012 s
2013
2014
2015
2018
Next 5 years 2.

v LN LA W Ln



The funded status of our OPEE plans is presented in the table below:

Years ended December 31,
2010 2011
{In millions)

Change in accumulated OPEE obligations:

Obligations at beginning of the year s 14.2 $§ 11.2
Service cost 4 -2
Interest cost . B -6
Actuarial losses 1.6 1.9
Plan amendments (5.8} -
Change in currency exchange rates .5 (.3}
Benefits paid from employer contributions {.5] (.4)
Obligations at end of the year 11.2 13.2

Fair wvalue of plan assets = -

Funded status £ (11.2) $ (13.2)
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet:
Current accrued pension costs 5 {.6]) $ (.5)
Noncurrent accrued pension costs (10.6) (12.7)
Total 5 (11.2) § (13.2)
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Wet actuarial losses 5 3.2 s 4.9
Prior service credit (6.1) (5.3)
Total £ (2.9) s (.4}

The amounts shown in the table above for net actuarial losses and prior
service credit at December 31, 2010 and 2011 have not yet been recognized as
components of our periocdic OPEB cost as of those dates. These amounts will
be recognized as components of our periocdic OPEE cost in future years and are
recognized, net of deferred income taxes, in our accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss}. We expect to recognize approximately 5.3 million
of unrecognized actuarial losses and $.6 million of prior service credit as
components of our periodic OPEB cost in 2012.

At December 31, 2011, the accumulated OPEB o¢bligations for all OPEB
plans was comprised of $51.2 million related to U.S. plans and 512.0 million
related to our Canadian plan (2010 - 51.4 million and $9%.7 million,
respectively) .

In the fourth guarter of 2010, we amended our benefit formula for most
participants of our plans effective January 1, 2011, resulting in a prior
service credit of approximately 55.8 million as of December 31, 2010. Key
assumptions including the health care cost trend rate as of December 31, 2010
now reflect these plan revisions to the benefit formula.

The components of our periocdic OPEB costs are presented in the table
below. The amounts shown below for amortization of prior service credit and
recognized actuarial losses for 2009, 2010 and 2011 were recognized as
components of our accumulated cother comprehensive income (loss) at December
31, 2008, 2009 and 2019, respectively, net of deferred income taxes.



Years ended December 31,
2nna 2010 2071
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(In millions)

t periodic OPEB cost (credit}: e
Service cost 5 .2 s .4 8 .2
Interest cost .6 .B .6
mamortization of prior service credit (.2) {.2) (.8)
Recognized actuarial losses - .2 .3
Total § .6 § 1.2 g .3

The table below details the changes in benefit obligations recognized
accumulated other comprehensive income {(loss}) during 2009, 2010 and 2011. in

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2010 2011
(In millions)

anges in benefit obligations recognized in Ch
ther comprehensive income (loss): o
rrent year: Cu

Net actuarial loss s (3.2) $ (1.6) $ (z.0)

Plan amendments - 5.8 -
srtization of unrecognized: Am

Prior service credit (.2) (.2} (.8)

Net actuarial loss . - L2 .3

Total 5 (3.4) 5 4.2 5 (2.5)

B summary of our key actuarial assumptions used to determine the net

nefit obligation as of December 31, 2010 and 2011 are presented in the table be

low. The weighted average discount rate was determined using the projected be

nefit obligation as of such dates. The impact of assumed increases in be

ture compensation levels does not have a material effect on the actuarial fu

esent value of the benefit obligation as substantially all of such benefits pPr

late solely to eligible retirees, for which compensation is not applicable. re
2010 2011

althcare inflation: He

Initial rate 7.5% B.0%

Ultimate rate 5.5% 5.0%

Year of ultimate rate achievement 2018 2018

ighted average discount rate 5.1% 4.1% We

Assumed health care cost trend rates affect the amounts we report for
alth care plans. B one percent change in assumed health care trend rates he
nidLoete "AYE: Aavaterialepffert 0o s, P PRI ODLC ORFR- GO - fo5c P03 250 ar ~am - v
the accumulated OPEB cbligation at December 31, 2011.




Variances from actuarially-assumed rates will result in additional
increases or decreases in accumulated OPEE obligations, net periocdic OPEB cost
and funding requirements in future periecds.

Note 12 - Other noncurrent liabilities:
December 31,

2010 2011
(In millions)

Reserve for uncertain tax positions $ 10.8 $ 11.9
Employee henefits 9.7 10.2
Insurance claims and expenses .3 .3
Other 5.0 5.0

Total 5 25.6 $§ 27.4
Note 13 - Common stock compensation and other stock tramsactions:

Secondary public offering of common stock - In HNovember 2010, we
completed a secondary public offering of 17.94 million shares of our common
stock in an underwritten ocffering for net proceeds of 5337.8 million. The
price to the public was $520.00 per share, and the underwriting discount was
5.7%% (or 31.15 per share). Costs of the offering (exclusive of the
underwriting discount} were approximately $.7 million. The offering took

place in two parts, and the first cleosing occurred on November 2, 2010 of
15.6 million shares of common stock that generated net proceeds of $293.5
million. The second closing (upon exercise of the underwriters’' over-
allotment option) occcurred on November 9, 2010 for an additional 2.34 million
shares of common stock that generated additicnal net proceeds of 544.1
million. The shares of common stock issued in the secondary offering are
identical teo the previously issued outstanding shares in all respects,
including par wvalue, liquidation and dividend preference. All shares were
g2ld to third-party investors; none of our affiliated companies purchased any
shares in the offering. Upon completion of the offering, the WValhi
consolidated aggregate ownership of Kronocs was reduced from 95.2% (59.2% held
by Valhi directly and 36.0% held by NL directly) to B0.4% (50.0% is held by
Valhi directly and 30.4% is held by NL directly}.

NL common sStock options held by our employees - Certain of our
employees were granted nongualified options to purchase NL common stock under
the terms of certain option plans sponsored by HNL. Generally, the stock

options were granted at a price egqual to or greater than 100% of the market
price of NL's common stock at the date of grant, vested over a five-year
period and expired ten years from the date of grant. At December 31, 2011,
no options were outstanding as all outstanding options expired or were
exercised in 2011. During 2009, 2010 and 2011, 6,950, 10,350 and 25,950
options were exercised, respectively.

Long-term incentive compensation plan - We have a long-term incentive
compensation plan that provides for the discretionary grant of, among other
things, gqualified incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options,
restricted common stock, stock awards and stock appreciation rights. Up to
150,000 shares of our common stock may be issued pursuant to this plan. As
of December 31, 2011, no opticns had been granted pursuant to this plan, and
115,500 shares were available for future grants. During 2009, 2010 and 2011
we awarded an aggregate of 10,500, 7,000, and 3,500 shares of our common
stock pursuant to this plan to members of our beoard of directors. In
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Current receivables from and pavables to affiliates are summarized in the
table below.

December 31,
2010 2011
{(In millions)

Current receivable from affiliate - LPC - I—- £ 29.6
Noncurrent note receivable from Valhi $ 61.9 § 136.1

Current pavables to affiliates:

LPC & 7.4 $

Income taxes payable to Valhi 2.1 8.6

Other .1 -
Total & 9.8 8.6

From time to time, we will have loans and advances cutstanding between
us and wvarious related parties pursuant to term and demand notes. We
generally enter inte these leoans and advances for cash management
purposes. When we loan funds to related parties, we are generally able to
earn a higher rate of return on the loan than we would earn if we invested
the funds in other instruments, and when we borrow from related parties, we
are generally able to pay a lower rate of interest than we would pay if we
had incurred third-party indebtedness. While certain of these loans to
affiliates may be of a lesser credit quality than cash equivalent instruments
otherwise available to us, we believe we have considered the credit risks in
the terms of the applicable leocans. In this regard:

» In November 2010, we entered into an unsecured revolving demand
promissory note with WValhi whereby, as amended, we agreed to loan
Valhi up to £225 million. Our loan to Valhi bears interest at prime
plus 1.00%, payable guarterly, with all principal due on demand, but
in any event no earlier than December 31, 2013. The amount of our
cutstanding loans to Valhi at any time is at our discretion. As of
December 31, 2011, we had loans outstanding te Valhi of 5136.1
million;
= In April 2010, we entered inte an unsecured revolving credit note
with Centran pursuant to which we could borrow up to 540 million
e A et e L Dpshooosrmeludts toadlt L orSfvssgdsedsde NDoD - Duerraeoes = spors
maturity in December 2011; and
¢ TIn October 2008, we entered into an unsecured revelving credit
with ML pursuant to which we could borrow up to %540 million fre
through December 31, 2009. Such revolving credit note termis
upon its maturity in December 2009,

Interest income on our lean to Valhi was $.5 million in 2010 and
million in 2011. Interest expense on our loans from Contran and NL was
million in 200%, 5.2 million in 2010 and nil in 2011.

Amounts payable to LPC are generally for the purchase of Ti0;,
amounts receivable from LPC are generally from the sale of feedstock
See MNote 5. Purchases of Ti0; from LPC were $121.1 million in 20092, 3:
million in 2010 and 3%145.0 million in 2011. Sales of feedstock ore tc
were nil in 2009, %5.2 million in 2010 and $93.0 million in 2011.
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strive to improve our environmental performance. From time to time,

subject to environmental regulatory enforcement wunder U.S.

statutes, resolution of which typically involves
compliance programs. It is peossible that future

stricter requirements of environmental laws and

thereunder, could adversely affect our production,
transportation, sale or disposal of such substances.

plants are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental laws.

Litigation matters - We are involved in

we may be

and non-U.S5.

the establishment of
developments, such as
enforcement policies
handling, use, storage,

We believe all of our

and other claims and disputes incidental to our business.
the disposition of all claims and disputes, individually or in the aggregate,
should not have a material adverse effect on our consclidated financial

condition, results of cperations or liguidity.

In March 2010, we were served with two
subsequently consclidated as Haley Paint et al. w.

and Company, et al. (United S5tates District Court,
Maryland, Case No. 1:10-cv-00318-RDB). A third plaintiff intervened into the

E.I.

various
contractual, product liability, patent (or intellectual property),
We currently believe

complaints
Du Pont de Nemours

environmental,

employment

which

were

for the District of

EOTWEEE . ZeFl T LHETTeeTenednts -IAZluas e B Tow T EOhE s o

'‘ompany, Huntsman Internatiomal LLC, Millennium Inorganic
=. and the National Titanium Dioxide Company Limited (d/b/fa
intiffs seek to represent a class consisting of all persons and
purchased titanium dioxide in the United States directly from
»f the defendants on or after March 1, 2002. The complaint
-he defendants conspired and combined to fix, raise, maintain,
the price at which titanium dioxide was sold in the United

aged in other anticompetitive conduct. In May 2010, defendants
n to dismiss, which plaintiffs opposed. In March 2011, the
the motion toc dismiss. The case is proceeding in the trial

lieve the action is without merit, have denied all allegations
and liability and intend to defend against the action

ations of credit risk - Sales of Ti0, accounted for
90% of our sales during each of the years 2009 and 2010 and 952%
remaining sales result from the mining and sale of ilmenite ore
al used in the sulfate pigment production process), and the

1
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titanium chemical products (derived from co-products of the TiQ, production
processes) . Ti0, is generally sold teo the paint, plastics and paper

industries. Such markets are generally considered “quality-of-1ife” markets
whose demand for TiO; is influenced by the relative economic well-being of the

various geographic regions. We sell TiO, to over 4,000 customers,
top ten customers approximating 28% of net sales in 2009,

our net sales in any of the previous three years.

with the

27% in 2010 and 30%
in 2011. We did not have sales to a single customer comprising over 10% of
The table below shows the
significant

approximate percentage of our Ti0, sales by wvolume for our
markets, Eurcope and North America, for the last three years.
2009 2010 2011
Europe 531% 53% 53%
North Bmerica 32% 33% 32%



Long-term contracts - We have long-term supply contracts that provide for
certain of our Ti0, feedstock reguirements through 2016. The agreements
require us to purchase certain minimum quantities of feedstock with minimum
purchase commitments aggregating approximately $2.6 billion over the life of

the contracts at December 31, 2011. In addition, we have other long-term
supply and service contracts that provide for wvarious raw materials and
services. These agreements reguire us to purchase certain minimum gquantities

or services with minimum purchase commitments aggregating approximately 587
million at December 31, 2011.

Operating leases - OQOur principal German operating subsidiary leases the
land under its Leverkusen Ti0; production facility pursuant to a lease with
Bayer AG that expires in 2050. The Leverkusen facility itself, which we own
and which represents approximately one-third of our current TiQ, production
capacity, is located within Bayer's extensive manufacturing complex. We
periodically establish the amount of rent for the land lease associated with
the Leverkusen facility by agreement with Bayer for periods of at least two
years at a time. The lease agreement provides for no formula, index or other
mechanism to determine changes in the rent for such land lease; rather, any
change in the rent is subject solely to periodic negotiation between Bayer and
us. We recognize any change in the rent based on such negotiations as part of
lease expense starting from the time such change is agreed upon by both
parties, as any such change in the rent is deemed “contingent rentals® under

GARP. Under a separate supplies and services agreement expiring in 2012, a
i g e AR og LRy pymed | snhoddder oaf. Baver, sl At Gome oo e emaberi ale . sdne g § 2 2 oo
v andfoperatifigematerialts, utilitiss and¥serwvites:necessary chlorine;:: auxiliak
zrkusen facility. to operate the Lew
se wvarious other manufacturing facilities and eguipment. We alsoc les
s contain purchase and/or wvarious term renewal options at Some of the lease
alr rental wvalues, respectively. In most cases we expect fair market and £
mal course of business, such leases will be renewed or that, in the nor
leases. HNet rent expense approximated $11 million in each replaced by other
and %13 million in 2011, At December 31, 2011, future of 2009 and 2010
inder noncancellable operating leases having an initial or minimum payments
more than one year were as follows: remaining term of
ijecember 31, Amount Years ending L
(In millions)

£ 12.3 2012

7.2 2013

4.2 2014

3.2 2015

1.4 2016
:reafter __17.4 2017 and the

5 45,7 Total

¥ 518 million of the 3545.7 million aggregate future minimum hpproximatel
s+ Tacamhas 31 701l e '3 - FooildiEre . - v g 1 meeamnd Fonaeb e
T R e o T b A T e S i BT i Sl R e A




Income taxes - We and Valhi have agreed te a policy providing for the
allocation of tax liabilities and tax payments as described in Note 1.

applicable law, we, along with every other member of the Contran Tax Group.
income tax

liability of Contran and the other companies included in the Contran Tax

are each jointly and severally liable for the aggregate federal

oo . Bpoan, for..8l] neriods _din_wbich_we_are dncluded.  in. the Contvan Tax GromBe .o

s agreed, however, to indemnify us for any liability for income taxes
‘ontran Tax Group in excess of our tax liability previously computed
by us in accordance with the tax allocation policy.

- Financial instruments:

g following table summarizes the waluation of our financial
nts recorded on a fair value basis as of December 31, 2010 and 2011:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Significant
Prices in Other Significant
Active Obgervable Unchservable
Markets Inputs Inputs
Total {Level 1) (Level Z2) (Level 3)
(In millions)
iability)
r 31, 2010
oy forward contracts $§ 6.3 5 6.3 5 - g -
rent marketable
irities (See Note &) 49.7 49,7 - -
r 31, 2011
cy forward contracts 5 (.8) 5 (.8) E - g -
t marketable
irities (See Note &) 20.9 20.9 - -

rent marketable
rities (See Note &) 98.4 98.4 - -

Valhi ha
of the C
and paid

Hote 16

Thu
instrume:

Asset (L
Decembe
Curren
Honcur
secy

Daecembe
curren
Curren

secy
Noncur
secuy




ough December 2012 at a rate of %54.0 million month,
redemption provisions at our option.

estimated fair 0 1 currency forward

B eed LT 4 T ) b J gl s mmename




which we present our comprehensive income in these Consolidated Financial

Statements. Additionally, ASU 2011-05 would have regquired us to present on the

face of our financial statements the effect of reclassifications out of

accumulative other comprehensive income on the components of net income and

other comprehensive income. However, in December 2011 the FRSE issued ASU

2011-12, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Deferral of the Effective Date for

Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated

Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05. ASU

2011-12 defers the effectiveness for the requirement to present on the face of

our financial statements the effects of reclassifications out of accumulated

other comprehensive income on the components of net income and other

Belrm t:-'i:%r:‘rq-":-‘!{'.?.:ha'rl S ¥ e B A R '1%“;-’"0'{!1"1%'5?5!%' Joat GG e T o TR O e IR Y Np—— Y T T T
not have a material effect on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

P _.Lrlr___“d_;I_'__E\En“?’ﬁthE": ire pRalalabesl =

about In December 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-11 Discleos
Of fsetting Assets and Liabilities. ASU 2011-11 requires entities

both gross information and net information about both instr
transactions eligible for offset in the balance sheet and inst:
transactions subject to an agreement similar to a master netting a
This standard will be effective for annual and interim periocds heg
our first guarter 2013 report. We do not beliewve the adoption of th
will have a material effect on our Consclidated Financial Statements

ures
to disclose
uments and
ruments and
rrangement.
inning with
1is standard

Note 18 - Quarterly results of operations (unaudited):

Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Septembar 30
{(In millions, except per share

December 31

data)
Year ended December 31, 2010
5§ 373.3 Net sales 5§ 319.7 § 380.1 5 3176.6
B I 1 B T SOOI . '3, N+ T- = fo T = OO [ #E 2 as 72
60.5 8s.2 96.2 103.4 Gross margin
42 .8 19.3 32.1 i6.4 Net income

Basic and diluted earnings per
common share




in the third a




FKRONOS WORLDWIDE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

Condensed Balance Sheats

(In millions)

December 31
2011

Deferred income taxes

current ass




ERONOS WORLDWIDE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (Continued)

Condensed Statements of Operations

(In millionsg)

Years ende
20089




KRONOS WORLDWIDE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (Continued)
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions)

Years ended December 31,
2009 2010 2011




KRONOS WORLDWIDE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE I - CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (Continued)

Motes to Condensed Financial Information

Mote 1 - Basis of presentation:

The accompanying financial statements of Kronos Worldwide, Inc. reflect
our investment in majority-owned subsidiaries on the equity method. The
Consoclidated Financial Statements of Kronos  and its majority-owned
subsidiaries (the “Company”} and the related Notesz tc Consclidated Financial
Statements are incorporated herein by reference.

Hote 2 - Receivable from (payable to) subsidiaries and affiliates:

L December 31{___
2010 2011
(In millions)

Current:
Receivable from:
.ana, Ime. (“KLA") """ T 7 s Agr4 "UTTTUE 23,5 T - Kronos Louls:
taxes 7.5 7.2 KLAR - income
taxes - 7.1 KIT - income
§ s1.9 s 37.8 Total
Payvable to:

Twe - &8 73R Kronos (U8)

: taxes 2.1 8.6 Valhi - income
5 _76.9 § 32.1 Total
Noncurrent:

om Valhi 5 651.9 § 136.1 Note receivable fir
L 5 263.1 § 274.4 Note payable to KI
[I loaned us an aggregate € 163.1 million (%$209.5 million Prior to 2009, K
instead of paying us cash dividends. The original notes at the borrowing date)
r 31, 2010 maturity date and required interest to be paid provided for a Decembe:
rate of 9.25%. Prior to 2009, the terms of these notes guarterly at an annual
: the requirements for guarterly interest payments and to were modified to remow:
ite to December 31, 2013, and at December 31, 2010 and extend the maturity d:
ke of $45.4 million and $63.5 million, respectively, of 2011 we had an aggrega
erest on these locans. The notes are unsecured, contain accrued and unpaid int
and provide for default only upon our failure to pay any noe financial covenants
ect to a short grace period). Due to the long-term amount when due (subj
these notes, settlement of the principal and accrued investment nature of
the notes is not contemplated within the foreseeable interest balance of |

expect that settlement of the principal and interest future. We currently
ill oececur through a capital transaction. We recognize amount of the notes w
ch notes as incurred. Until such time as the notes are interest expense on su
1ize interest expense on the promissory notes. settled, we will recoar



Hote 3 - Investment in subsidiaries:

December 31,

2010

2011

{In millions)

Investment in:

KLA 5 214.3 $ 154.5

KC 76.9 100.0

KIT 442 .3 651.2

Total $.733.5 8 2945.7
2009 2010 2011

(In millions)

Equity in earnings (loss) from continuing
operations of subsidiaries:

KLA $ 14.4 5 39.8 $ 68.4
KC (.5) 5.8 40.4
KII {32.1) 99.8 243.4

Total $ (18.2) § 145.4 $ 352.2







Kronos Worldwide, Inc.
Three Lincoln Centre

5430 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1700
Dallas, TX 75240-2697

News Release

xday reported net income for the
income of $36.4 million, or $.33
orldwide reported net income of
per share for the full year 2010,

year periods was impacted by
2y selling prices in 2011, higher
yme tax benefit recognized in the

1.|F1'Jfr1n-"‘i']- thoarein-i SPwerepos 1wz =
= of $ A millian intbe fdlvearaf 2011 wea K
3 f-"-unh uua*tFr and the full year 2011 due primarily ln h|ghn=r

act of fluctuations in currency exchange rates, partially offset
ige TiO; selling prices increased 46% in the fourth quarter of
J, and increased 40% for the full year as compared to 2010,
he end of the fourth guarter of 2011 were 11% higher than at
ne improvement in selling prices that began in the second half
I1. Fluctuations in currency exchange rates also impacted net
t million in the fourth quarter of 2011 and approximately $

Contact: Janet Keckeisen
Vice President = Investor Relations
(972) 2331700

DALLAS, TEXAS. . March 6, 2012... Kronos Worldwide, Inc. (NYSE.KRO) t«
fourth quarter of 2011 of $85.8 million, or $.74 per share compared with net
per share, in the fourth quarter of 2010, For the full year of 2011, Kronos W
$321.0 million, or $2.77 per share, compared with $130.6 million, or $1.29 |
Comparability of the Company's results for both the fourth quarter and full
higher income from operations in 2011 principally due to higher average Til
production volumes in 2011 as well as a 335.2 million non-cash deferred incc
first quarter of 2010, in each case as discussed further below.

- __;u_ls_mpr_ni 0. . Metszl

r2010. Net sales increased in the

average TiO; selling prices and the FCI-':‘rItWE: imp
by lower sales volumes. The Company's avers
2011 as compared to the fourth quarter of 201
The Company's average TiO; selling prices at t
the end of the third quarter of 2011, continuing il
of 2009 and continued thrﬂughuutﬂﬂm and 201
sales, increasing net sales by approximately $:







« General global economic and political conditions (such as changes in the level of gross domestic

_product in various reaions.of Llf-e_u'.rﬂ_r!d_an_d__tq_e__i.rg%%t_:t of Sl_Jé,}, r%%;%‘g%%@ﬁ&d@%{ U%E%fé“‘

business resulting from terrorist

ange rate between the U.S. dollar
*), or possible disruptions to our
s associated with the euro;

, leaks, natural disasters, fires,
1 inferruptions);

Customer and competitor strategies,

Potential consolidation of our competitors;

The impact of pricing and production decisions;

Competitive technology positions,

Possible disruption of our business or increases in the cost of doing
activities or global conflicts;

The introduction of trade barriers,

Fluctuations in currency exchange rates (such as changes in the exch:
and each of the euro, the Norwegian krone and the Canadian daollai
business resulting from potential instakbility resulting from uncertaintie
Operating interruptions (including, but not limited to, laber disputes
explosions, unscheduled or unplanned downtime and transportatior
Cur ability to renew or refinance credit facilities;

Cuur ability to maintain sufficient liquidity;

e othar ey MABEE e BURGEH B Ul [0 HEAaA duUlismiat-souesn Srsahid i atis e mandigaema oy audite_tow caltlamant inftiatiac ¢
«Our ability to Utilize income tax atinoutes. the bepefits ofwhichihave been recoqnized underthemore-

se requiring compliance with emission and discharge standards for

ind possible changes therein;
itigation; and

glize (or the consequences of such a development worsen), or
correct, actual results could differ materially from those forecasted
¢ intention or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
n information, future events or otherwise,

nal information regarding the Company’s results of operations as

lIKEN=lRgn=AoT recagnilon-crens=
+ Envircnmental matters (such as tho!
existing and new facilities),
+ Government laws and regulations 3
» The ultimate resolution of pending |
» Possible future litigation

Should one or more of these risks materi
should the underlying assumptions prove in
or expected. The Company disclaims any
statement whether as a resuit of changes i

In an effort to provide investors with additio



VORLDWIDE, INC.
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KRONOS WORLDWIDE, INC.
RECOMNCILIATION OF SEGMENT PROFIT TO
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
{In millions)

(Unaudited)

Three months Year
ended December 31, ended December 31,
2010 2011 2010 2011
Segment profit 5 625 5 1459 $ 185.8 $ 555.8
Adjustments:
Trade interest income (.1} (.1) (.2) (.3)
Corporate expense (1.5) (2.5) (7.2) {9.0)
Income from operations £ 609 $ 1433 3 178.4 $ 546.5

oo JMPACT OF PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN SALES



EXHIBIT Z21.1

SUBSIDIARIES QF THE REGISTRANT

Jurigdiction of % of Voting

incorporation Securities Held at

NAME OF CORPORATION or organization December 31, 2011 (a)
Kronos Canada, Inc. Canada 100
Kronos International, Inc. Delaware 100
Kronos Titan GmbH Germany 100
Société Industrielle du Titane, S.A4. France a9
Kronos Limited United Kingdom 100
Kronos Denmark ApS Denmark 100
Kronos Europe 5.4./N.V. Belgium 100
Kronos B.V. Netherlands 100
Kronos Norge A/SS Norway 100
Kronos Titan A/S Norway 100

Titania A/S Norway 100

The Trneginafiard Monufoen

Krenos Louisiana, Inc.

Delaware 100
Delaware 100 Kronos (US), Inc.
Delaware 50 Louisiana Pigment Company, L.P.

:d subsidiary of the Registrant (a) Held by the Registrant or the indicate
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